
 

CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting 

 
City Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso 

City Council Chamber – Revere City Hall 

281 Broadway, Revere, Massachusetts 02151 

Calendar 

Monday, May 9, 2022, 6:00 PM 

 
 

5:00PM  Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee Meeting 

5:30PM  Zoning Sub-Committee Meeting 

Salute to the Flag 

 

1.    Roll Call of Members 

2.   Approval of the Journal of the Regular Meeting of April 25, 2022 

Public Hearings 

3. 22-136 Hearing called as ordered on a bond authorization in the amount of $3,639,789 for 

the replacement of windows and doors at the Lincoln School. 

Unfinished Business 

4. 22-062 Proposed amendment to the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere by the 

applicant, Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company of Boston, LLC, 50 Tomahawk Drive, 

Building #49, East Boston, MA 02128 relative to Automotive/Rental Car 

Facilities in the HB District (Engrossment and Ordainment). 

5. 22-130 Petition by National Grid to install new underground electric service to a pump 

station from existing pole #1847 on Rice Avenue, Revere, MA 02151. 

Economic Development Sub-Committee Report 

6. 22-026 Communication from the City Auditor requesting adoption of MGL Chapter 40, 

Section 22A 1/2 relative to a "Parking Benefits District". 

Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee Report 

7. 22-120 Motion presented by Council President Visconti, Councillor McKenna: That the 

Mayor request the Board of Health and the Public Health Division to develop 

biosafety level regulations for the City of Revere.  Further, that the City Solicitor, 

City Planner, and Planning Board be requested to draft a zoning ordinance to 

provide for, up to and including, biosafety level 2 research and development 

facilities including life science manufacturing. 

8. 22-121 Motion presented by Council President Visconti, Councillor McKenna: That the 

Mayor request the City Solicitor to draft special legislation applicable to the City 

of Revere prohibiting testing on sentient creatures for cosmetic purposes. 

Zoning Sub-Committee Report 



City Council – Regular Meeting May 9, 2022 

  

9. 22-127 Karbell, LLC, 355 Middlesex Ave., Wilmington, MA 01887 seeking permission 

from the Revere City Council to raze the existing non-conforming structures on 

25 and 55 American Legion Highway, Revere, MA and construct a new fast 

food/take-out/drive-in restaurant (coffee shop) with a drive through at 25 

American Legion Highway, Revere, MA and a new 6,786 sq. ft. structure 

consisting of a 5,275 sq. ft. commercial unit (urgent care) and a 1,511 sq. ft. 

commercial unit (pizza shop) at 55 American Legion Highway, Revere, MA. 

10. 22-128 Revere Dev. LLC, 304 Squire Road, Revere, MA 02151 requesting a special 

permit from the Revere City Council to enable the appellant to raze the existing 

structure and construct a new fast-food restaurant with a drive through window at 

304 Squire Road, Revere, MA. 

Communications 

11. 22-137 Communication from the City Auditor relative to bond rescissions for prior fiscal 

year state revolving fund authorizations. 

Motions 

12. 22-138 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor direct the Chief of 

Police to heavily patrol Cushman Avenue due to dangerous speeding. 

13. 22-139 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor direct the DPW to 

make various upgrades to Oxford Park including trash barrels, dog-waste 

dispensers, walkway improvements, weed barriers for flower beds, and the 

installation of a Little Free Library. 

14. 22-140 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor request Capital 

Waste to appear before the City Council to explain recent behaviors over the last 

three months. 

15. 22-141 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor request the Chief of 

Police to install a speedometer and potentially video monitoring at the intersection 

of Proctor Avenue and Adams Street.  There are very dangerous speeding issues 

at this intersection. 

16. 22-142 Motion presented by Council President Visconti, Councillor McKenna: That the 

City Council request Tom O'Brien, HYM Investment Group, to appear before the 

City Council Committee of the Whole on Monday, May 16, 2022 at 5:00PM for 

the purpose of discussing the new life sciences building to be constructed at 

Suffolk Downs. 

17. 22-143 Motion presented by Councillor Morabito: That the Mayor request Community 

Development and the DPW to install decorative street lamps extending the entire 

length of Broadway. 

18. 22-144 Motion presented by Council President Visconti: That the Mayor direct the CFO 

to provide the City Council with an up-to-date accounting of the use of ARPA 

funds, a breakdown of all ARPA funded current and future employees and the 

cost to maintain them.  Further, that the CFO provide the City Council with any 

future potential expenditures from this fund. 



City Council – Regular Meeting May 9, 2022 

  

19. 22-145 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor request the Vice-

Chair of the Human Rights Commission (HRC), Chai Hossaini, to appear before 

the City Council to discuss her verbal altercation with residents on December 20, 

2021 after the HRC meeting had ended. 

Late Communications 

20. 22-146 Communication from Ward Five Councillor Al Fiore notifying the City Council 

of his resignation as a member of the Revere City Council. 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
Regular Meeting 

 

City Councillor 

Joseph A. DelGrosso 

City Council Chamber 

Journal 

Monday, April 25, 2022 
 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was called to order at 6:00 PM. President Gerry Visconti 

presiding.  

Salute to the Flag 
 

1 Roll Call of Members 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Anthony Cogliandro Councillor Present  

Al Fiore Councillor Absent  

Patrick M. Keefe Councillor Present  

Joanne McKenna Councillor Present  

Steven Morabito Councillor Present  

Ira Novoselsky Councillor Present  

Dan Rizzo Councillor Present  

George J. Rotondo Councillor Present  

Richard J. Serino Councillor Late 6:58 PM 

Marc Silvestri Councillor Present  

Gerry Visconti President Present  
 

Councillor Rizzo offered a point of personal privilege to address the City Council, residents of 

Revere, and all Ward Five constituents that Councillor Fiore has not been feeling well, but is 

improving.  Since he has been under the weather he has not been able to return messages left by 

his constituents, but will get back to them as soon he is able.  
 

2 Approval of the Journal of the Regular Meeting of April 11, 2022 

RESULT: ACCEPTED 

Communications 

Council President Visconti requested suspension of the City Council Rules of Order for the 

purpose of taking up Council Order 22-131.  Suspension of the rules approved. 

 3 22-131 Communication from the Mayor relative to a briefing from the City 

Planner on the multi-family zoning requirement for MBTA communities. 

Frank Stringi, City Planner addressed the City Council for the purpose of providing a briefing on 

the new zoning requirements for MBTA communities.  Mr. Stringi indicated that the City of 

2

Packet Pg. 4

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

Revere already meets the new requirements especially through the Suffolk Downs Overlay 

District abutting the Beachmont Train Station. 

 

The requirement is codified a Section 3A of M.G.L. ch. 40A and it provides: 

 

Section 3A.  (a)(1) An MBTA community shall have a zoning ordinance or by-law that provides 

for at least 1 district of reasonable size in which multi-family housing is permitted as of right; 

provided, however, that such multi-family housing shall be without age restrictions and shall be 

suitable for families with children. For the purposes of this section, a district of reasonable size 

shall: (i) have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre, subject to any further limitations 

imposed by section 40 of chapter 131 and title 5 of the state environmental code established 

pursuant to section 13 of chapter 21A; and (ii) be located not more than 0.5 miles from a 

commuter rail station, subway station, ferry terminal or bus station, if applicable. 

 

(b)  An MBTA community that fails to comply with this section shall not be eligible for funds 

from: (i) the Housing Choice Initiative as described by the governor in a message to the general 

court dated December 11, 2017; (ii) the Local Capital Projects Fund established in section 

2EEEE of chapter 29; or (iii) the MassWorks infrastructure program established in section 63 of 

chapter 23A. 

 

(c)  The department, in consultation with the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority and 

the Massachusetts Department of Transportation, shall promulgate guidelines to determine if an 

MBTA community is in compliance with this section. 

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

Public Hearings 

 4 22-127 Hearing called as ordered on the application of Karbell, LLC, 355 

Middlesex Ave., Wilmington, MA 01887 seeking permission from the 

Revere City Council to raze the existing non-conforming structures on 25 

and 55 American Legion Highway, Revere, MA and construct a new fast 

food/take-out/drive-in restaurant (coffee shop) with a drive through at 25 

American Legion Highway, Revere, MA and a new 6,786 sq. ft. structure 

consisting of a 5,275 sq. ft. commercial unit (urgent care) and a 1,511 sq. 

ft. commercial unit (pizza shop) at 55 American Legion Highway, Revere, 

MA. 

Proponents 

Paul Kneeland 

Kathryn Hannigan 

Ben Osgood 

Dave Sanderson 

 

Opponents 

none 

 

2

Packet Pg. 5

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

Paul Kneeland addressed the City Council as a proponent and conducted a power point 

presentation which was received and made part of the file. 

RESULT: REFERRED TO ZONING Next: 5/9/2022 6:00 PM 

 5 22-128 Hearing called as ordered on the application of Revere Dev. LLC, 304 

Squire Road, Revere, MA 02151 requesting a special permit from the 

Revere City Council to enable the appellant to raze the existing structure 

and construct a new fast-food restaurant with a drive through window at 

304 Squire Road, Revere, MA. 

Proponents 

Attorney Gerry D'Ambrosio for the applicant 

Tony Zambuto, 87 High Street, Revere, MA 

Gennaro Cataldo, 35 Augustus Street, Revere, MA 

 

Opponents 

Michelle Kelley, 99 Derby Road, Revere, MA 

Kelli Resendes, 75 Grover Street, Revere, MA 

 

Attorney D'Ambrosio stated that a drive-thru special permit for this location was approved by the 

City Council back in 2011.  This project differs in that the drive-thru will eliminate access and 

egress on Derby and Sigourney Streets.  Patrons will be required to use Squire Road to enter and 

exit the drive-thru.  This special permit will provide the neighborhood with a brand new building 

and eliminate the billboard at this location.  Attorney D'Ambrosio further noted that without City 

Council approval, Popeye's would still be able to operate in the existing structure (without a 

drive-thru) and vehicles would have access to Derby and Sigourney Streets. 

 

Mr. Cataldo is in favor of the project, but would like to see the City Council set hours of 

operation due to being in close proximity to a residential use. 

 

Opponents cited traffic, litter, and rodent concerns for reasons of opposition.  Many patrons of 

the fast food locations at North Gate Plaza and Squire Road use Derby Street as a short-cut and 

litter the neighborhood with trash from those businesses.  Even though the proposed entrance and 

exit on Squire Road, opponents stated that vehicles will still take an immediate right turn onto 

Derby Street as a short-cut off of Squire Road.  Rodents were also a concern due to the potential 

trash generated by a fast food restaurant. 

RESULT: REFERRED TO ZONING Next: 5/9/2022 6:00 PM 

 6 22-129 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by National Grid to 

install new underground electrical service from pole #2024 to the property 

located at 727 Revere Beach Parkway, Revere, MA 02151. 

Proponents 

Moses Okokuro, National Grid 

 

2

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

Opponents 

none 

 

"SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL GRANT THE PETITION OF NATIONAL GRID TO 

INSTALL NEW UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL SERVICE FROM POLE #2024 TO 

THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 727 REVERE BEACH PARKWAY, REVERE, MA?" 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 7 22-130 Hearing called as ordered on a petition submitted by National Grid to 

install new underground electric service to a pump station from existing 

pole #1847 on Rice Avenue, Revere, MA 02151. 

Proponents 

Moses Okokuro, National Grid 

 

Opponents 

none 

 

The City Council tabled this petition as the Ward One Councillor Fiore representing this area of 

the City was unable to attend tonight's meeting. 

RESULT: TABLED - NO ROLL CALL Next: 5/9/2022 6:00 PM 

Communications 

Council President Visconti requested suspension of the City Council Rules of Order for the 

purpose of taking up Council Order 22-132.  Suspension of the rules approved. 

 8 22-132 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the certification of Free 

Cash - June 30, 2021. 

Rich Viscay, CFO addressed the City Council relative to the certification of free cash for Fiscal 

Year 2021. 

 

“SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$236,033 FROM FREE CASH TO THE GENERAL STABILIZATION FUND? 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

  22-132 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the certification of Free 

Cash - June 30, 2021. 

2

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

“SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$314,711 FROM FREE CASH TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT STABILIZATION 

FUND?" 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

  22-132 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the certification of Free 

Cash - June 30, 2021. 

“SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$250,000 FROM FREE CASH TO THE OPEB TRUST FUND?” 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

  22-132 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the certification of Free 

Cash - June 30, 2021. 

“SHALL THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$174,713 FROM WATER & SEWER FREE CASH TO THE WATER & SEWER 

STABILIZATION FUND?”  

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

Unfinished Business 

 9 22-062 Proposed amendment to the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere by 

the applicant, Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company of Boston, LLC, 50 

Tomahawk Drive, Building #49, East Boston, MA 02128 relative to 

Automotive/Rental Car Facilities in the HB District (Third and Final 

Reading). 

Councillor Cogliandro objected on the 3rd reading. 

RESULT: TABLED - OBJECTION 3RD AND FINAL READING Next: 5/9/2022 6:00 PM 

 10 22-100 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor be requested to 

provide the City Council with all demographic data points by census 

block. 

2

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 11 22-101 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor request Dr. 

Barros to provide the City Council with a copy of the REMAP plan and 

current scope of work to identify those who are traditionally and most 

marginalized in our community which was discussed at the Human Rights 

Commission meeting of March 10, 2022.  Further, that Dr. Barros be 

requested to inform the City Council of what can be done through the City 

Council to meet these goals. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 12 22-102 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor request Dr. 

Barros, Director of Talent and Culture, and City Solicitor Paul Capizzi to 

hold a hostile work environment seminar. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

Appointments Sub-Committee Report 

The Appointments Sub-Committee met on Monday, April 25, 2022 at 5:00PM in the City 

Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso City Council Chamber, Revere City Hall, 281 Broadway, 

Revere, MA 02151.  Committee members present were Councillors Keefe, McKenna, Rizzo 

(5:04PM), Visconti (ex-officio), and Chairman Cogliandro.  Councillor Serino was absent. 

 

There were several appointments pending before the sub-committee: 

 

22-085 Appointment of Stephen F. Reardon to the Election Commission. 

 

Former City Councillor Stephen Reardon received a unanimous favorable recommendation from 

the sub-committee. 

 

22-094 Appointment of Deborah Frank to the Affordable Housing Trust Fund. 

 

Deborah Frank addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation from 

the sub-committee. 

 

22-112 Appointment of Molly McGee to the Human Rights Commission 

 

Molly McGee addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation from 

the sub-committee. 

 

 22-114 Appointment of Soumia Aitelhaj to the Cultural Council 

 

Soumia Aitelhaj addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation from 

the sub-committee. 

2

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

 

 22-115 Appointment of Chloe Marie Therese Gladu to the Cultural Council 

 

Chole Gladu addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation from the 

sub-committee. 

 

 22-116 Appointment of Samantha Harrington to the Cultural Council 

 

Samantha Harrington addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation 

from the sub-committee. 

 

 22-117 Appointment of Lani Stevens to the Cultural Council 

 

Lani Stevens addressed the Chair and received a unanimous favorable recommendation from the 

sub-committee. 

 13 22-085 Communication from the Mayor relative to the appointment of Stephen F. 

Reardon to the Election Commission. 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 14 22-094 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Deborah 

Frank to Affordable Housing Trust Fund Board of Trustees 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 15 22-112 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Molly 

McGee to the Human Rights Commission 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 16 22-115 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Soumia 

Aitelhaj to the Cultural Council 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 17 22-116 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Chloe 

Marie Therese Gladu to the Cultural Council 

2

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 18 22-117 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Samantha 

Harrington to the Cultural Council 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

 19 22-118 Communication from the Mayor relative to the Appointment of Lani 

Stevens to the Cultural Council 

RESULT: ORDERED - ROLL CALL [UNANIMOUS] 

AYES: Cogliandro, Keefe, McKenna, Morabito, Novoselsky, Rizzo, Rotondo, Silvestri, Visconti 

ABSENT: Fiore, Serino 

Ways & Means Sub-Committee Report 

The Ways & Means Sub-Committee met on Monday evening, April 25, 2022 at 5:30PM in the 

City Councillor Joseph A. DelGrosso City Council Chamber, Revere City Hall, 281 Broadway, 

Revere, MA.  Committee members present were Councillors Keefe, Visconti (ex-officio), and 

Chairman Rizzo.  Councillors Fiore and Serino were absent.  Councillor Novoselsky is recused. 

 

22-019 An Ordinance Amending Metered Rates of the Revised Ordinances of the City of 

Revere. 

 

Rich Viscay, CFO addressed the City Council on this ordinance.  He suggested that the City 

Council wait for budget numbers for next fiscal year to become available so that he can provide 

the City Council with actual figures on how the rates will be redistributed across all rate payers. 

 

It was recommended that the proposed ordinance remain in committee until Mr. Viscay has 

submitted updated numbers for consideration. 

 

22-027 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the ARPA Fund Grant Summary. 

 

Rich Viscay, CFO reviewed the grant summary again with the Ways & Means Sub-Committee.  

If any of the Councillors require additional information regarding ARPA please feel free to 

contact Rich Viscay with any questions.  It was recommended that the summary be placed on 

file at this time. 

 

22-086 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor be requested to investigate 

the feasibility of installing GPS in all city vehicles with the exemption of emergency 

workers and department heads. As a cost alternative half the fleet. 

 

2

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

Rich Viscay, CFO addressed the committee on this motion.  He informed the committee that 

the City is in the process of installing GPS in all vehicles for the purpose of inventory tracking.  

It was recommended that this motion be placed on file at this time.    

 

22-087 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor be requested to provide an 

accounting to the City Council of all city-owned phones and who the phones are 

assigned to, except for Police and Fire investigators. 

 

Rich Viscay, CFO addressed the committee on this motion.  He informed the committee that 

the City is in the process centralizing cell phones out of the IT Department and is in the process 

of compiling this information.  It was recommended that this motion be placed on file at this 

time.    

 20 22-019 An Ordinance Amending Metered Rates of the Revised Ordinances of the 

City of Revere  Section 1.  Section 13.04.130 Meters – Metered Rates of 

the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby amended by 

inserting the words, “or an owner-occupied residential building comprised 

of not more than six units” after the word “units” in the first sentence of 

the definition for “Residential use”.  Section 2.  Section 13.04.130 Meters 

– Metered Rates of the Revised Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby 

amended by inserting the words, “except for an owner-occupied 

residential building comprised of not more than six units” after the word 

“units” in the first sentence of the definition for “Commercial use”.  

Section 3.  Section 13.04.132 Multi-unit facility billing of the Revised 

Ordinances of the City of Revere is hereby amended by inserting the 

words, “except for an owner-occupied residential building comprised of 

not more than six units” after the word “units” in the first sentence. 

RESULT: REFERRED TO WAYS & MEANS 

 21 22-027 Communication from the City Auditor relative to the ARPA Fund Grant 

Summary. 

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

 22 22-086 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor be requested to 

investigate the feasibility of installing GPS in all city vehicles with the 

exemption of emergency workers and department heads.  As a cost 

alternative half the fleet. 

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

 23 22-087 Motion presented by Councillor Rotondo: That the Mayor be requested to 

provide an accounting to the City Council of all city-owned phones and 

who the phones are assigned to, except for Police and Fire investigators. 

2

Packet Pg. 12

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

Communications 

 24 22-133 Communication from Gina Castiello, 46 Nell Road, Revere, MA relative 

to the City's Human Rights Commission. 

Gina Castiello, 46 Nell Road, Revere, MA read her communication to the City Council into the 

record. 

 

Council President Visconti addressed some of Ms. Castiello's concerns that were under the 

jurisdiction of the City Council: 

 

Exactly how was it determined there needed to be a “human rights commission” in this city? 

 

The Human Rights Commission was established in 1994 on a request to the City Council by 

Mayor Haas. 

 

If appointed by the Mayor what are the other steps are part of the approval process? 

 

As far as the City Council is concerned, appointments by the Mayor to any municipal boards (not 

just the Human Rights Commission) are subject to confirmation by the City Council. 

 

A main issue I would really like addressed is the fact that it has been almost one year since I 

put in a complaint on May 6 2021. I was denied a public mediation 4 times and have yet to 

have anyone reach out to me about this issue for resolution. 

 

Your request for mediation is not within City Council jurisdiction.  It is the understanding of the 

City Council that you were offered a time for private mediation with Mayor Arrigo and have 

declined because you would like to have a discussion in a public forum as opposed to private 

mediation. 

 

I would like to know about behavioral standards for members of the HRC. Every time I do 

attend a meeting I am treated in an extremely dismissive manner and other things as well.  

Most recently at the April 7th meeting, myself and a group of citizens came to ask questions; 

as I was challenged at the previous meeting by Dr. Barros to have more people show up to 

voice their concerns. That meeting was the first time they ran too long to hear from the public. 

It was obvious they were purposely running the time out. 

 

This matter is not within the jurisdiction of the City Council.  You will have to address the 

Human Rights Commission and the Mayor relative to these concerns. 

 

Ms. Castiello expressed another concern that she was called "garbage" by a member of the 

Human Rights Commission.  In response, Councillor Cogliandro requested that Ms. Castiello 

provide audio or video evidence to him of the alleged incident for his review. 

 

2

Packet Pg. 13

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

Councillor Keefe noted that the Human Rights Commission has no authority over any member of 

the public and neither do most boards or commissions such as the Election Commission, Council 

on Elder Affairs, or Cultural Council as examples. 

 

Sophia D'Urbano, 86 Atwood Street, Revere, MA addressed the City Council and expressed 

similar views of the Human Rights Commission to that of Ms. Castiello.          

RESULT: PLACED ON FILE 

Motions 

 25 22-134 Motion presented by Councillor Cogliandro: That the Mayor and Chief of 

Police be requested to look into creating SafeTrade Stations in Revere. 

SafeTrade Stations are utilized for safe exchanges on internet purchases 

from private online sales such as Craigslist and Facebook marketplace. 

There are currently 18 cities within the Commonwealth utilizing 

SafeTrade Stations. These stations are generally parking spaces on police 

department property and/or the police station lobby all with 24/7 

monitoring. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

 26 22-135 Motion presented by Council President Visconti: That the Mayor be 

requested to provide shredder truck services for residents twice per year to 

shred personal information documents.  One event shall be held in the 

Beachmont area the other event shall be held at Griswold Park. 

RESULT: ORDERED - VOICE VOTE 

Late Communication 

 27 22-136 Communication from the City Auditor requesting a bond authorization in 

the amount of $3,639,789 for the replacement of windows and doors at the 

Lincoln School. 

City of Revere, MA 

Proposed Loan Order 

Lincoln School Window & Door Replacement Bonds 

 

 

That $3,639,789 is appropriated to pay costs of replacing the windows and doors at the Abraham 

Lincoln School located at 68 Tuckerman Street, Revere, Massachusetts, including the payment 

of all costs incidental and related thereto (the "Project"), which proposed Project would 

materially extend the useful life of the school and preserve an asset that otherwise is capable of 

supporting the required educational program, and for which the City may be eligible for a grant 

from the Massachusetts School Building Authority (the "MSBA"), said amount to be expended 

2

Packet Pg. 14

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

under the direction of the School Building Committee; that to meet this appropriation, the 

Treasurer, with the approval of the Mayor, is authorized to borrow said amount under and 

pursuant to Chapter 44, Section 7(1) or Chapter 70B of the General Laws, or pursuant to any 

other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the City therefor; that the City 

acknowledges that the MSBA' s grant program is a non-entitlement, discretionary program based 

on need, as determined by the MSBA, and any project costs the City incurs in excess of any 

grant approved by and received from the MSBA shall be the sole responsibility of the City; that 

any grant that the City may receive from the MSBA for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of 

(1) seventysix percent (76%) of eligible, approved project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or 

(2) the total maximum grant amount determined by the MSBA; and that the amount of the 

borrowing authorized by this order shall be reduced by any grant amount set forth in and 

received pursuant to the Project Funding Agreement that may be executed between the City and 

the MSBA. 

 

That the Treasurer is authorized to file an application with the appropriate officials of The 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the "Commonwealth") to qualify under Chapter 44A of the 

General Laws any and all bonds of the City authorized to be borrowed pursuant to this loan 

order, and to provide such information and execute such documents as such officials of the 

Commonwealth may require in connection therewith. 

RESULT: ORDERED TO PUBLIC HEARING - CC Next: 5/9/2022 6:00 PM 

Adjournment 

Councillor Serino offered a point of personal privilege to address the residents and apologize for 

running late to this evening's meeting.  He indicated that he would have voted favorably on the 

several appointment confirmations and the free cash transfers were he present during the roll 

calls. 

 

Councillor Morabito offered a moment of silence for Frank Pellegrino of Revere on April 20, 

2022 at the age of 49. Born in Boston on June 6, 1972.  Frank graduated from Revere High 

School and attended the Burdett School of Accounting and studied networking at Lincoln 

Technical Institute. The beloved son of the late Angelo Pellegrino and is survived by his loving 

mother Rose Pellegrino (Speranza) and her longtime companion Al Terminiello Jr. of Revere. 

Cherished father of Sean. Dear brother of Tanya Pellegrino of Revere. Loving nephew of 

Michele Corso and her late husband Joseph, Benny Pellegrino, Rosemarie Rams, and the late 

Mario Speranza and his surviving wife Janice. Also survived by many caring cousins and 

friends. 

 

 

The City Council now stands adjourned to meet on May 9, 2022. 

 

 

Ordered adjourned at 8:15 PM. 

 

 

Attest: 

2

Packet Pg. 15

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



City Council – Regular Meeting April 25, 2022 

  

 

 

 

 

City Clerk 

2

Packet Pg. 16

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
A

p
r 

25
, 2

02
2 

6:
00

 P
M

  (
S

al
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e 

F
la

g
)



3.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

o
an

O
rd

er
.L

in
co

ln
S

ch
o

o
lW

in
d

o
w

D
o

o
rR

ep
la

ce
m

en
tB

o
n

d
04

25
20

22
  (

22
-1

36
 :

 L
o

an
 O

rd
er

 -
 L

in
co

ln
 S

ch
o

o
l D

o
o

r 
&

 W
in

d
o

w



3.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

o
an

O
rd

er
.L

in
co

ln
S

ch
o

o
lW

in
d

o
w

D
o

o
rR

ep
la

ce
m

en
tB

o
n

d
04

25
20

22
  (

22
-1

36
 :

 L
o

an
 O

rd
er

 -
 L

in
co

ln
 S

ch
o

o
l D

o
o

r 
&

 W
in

d
o

w



4.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
Z

o
n

in
g

A
m

en
d

m
en

tR
en

ta
lC

ar
F

ac
ili

ti
es

H
B

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g
 D

is
tr

ic
t)



4.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

Z
22

01
R

en
ta

lC
ar

F
ac

ili
ti

es
H

B
D

is
tr

ic
tP

la
n

n
in

g
B

o
ar

d
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
  (

22
-0

62
 :

 C
Z

-2
2-

01
, R

en
ta

l C
ar

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 in

 H
B

 Z
o

n
in

g



5.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
R

ic
eA

ve
n

u
e0

42
52

02
2 

 (
22

-1
30

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 -

 R
ic

e 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
)



5.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
R

ic
eA

ve
n

u
e0

42
52

02
2 

 (
22

-1
30

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 -

 R
ic

e 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
)



5.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
R

ic
eA

ve
n

u
e0

42
52

02
2 

 (
22

-1
30

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 -

 R
ic

e 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
)



5.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
R

ic
eA

ve
n

u
e0

42
52

02
2 

 (
22

-1
30

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 -

 R
ic

e 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
)



5.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.N

at
io

n
al

G
ri

d
R

ic
eA

ve
n

u
e0

42
52

02
2 

 (
22

-1
30

 :
 N

at
io

n
al

 G
ri

d
 -

 R
ic

e 
A

ve
n

u
e 

P
u

m
p

 S
ta

ti
o

n
)



6.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



6.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 B
en

ef
it

s 
 (

22
-0

26
 :

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 B

en
ef

it
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t)



9.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



9.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.2

5-
55

A
m

er
ic

an
L

eg
io

n
H

ig
h

w
ay

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
27

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
, 2

5-
55

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 H

ig
h

w
ay

)



PROPOSED DESIGN
25-55 AMERCIAN LEGION HIGHWAY, REVERE MA

9.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



9.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

L
eg

io
n

H
ig

h
w

ay
S

p
ec

ia
lP

er
m

it
P

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

,



600 Unicorn Park Drive  Woburn, MA 01801 

Phone:  781-932-3201      Fax:  781-932-3413 

⚫ Page 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Paul Kneeland 

FROM: Kenneth P. Cram, P.E. 

CC:   

DATE:  April 25, 2022 

RE:  Proposed Commercial Site Redevelopment 

  25-55 American Legion Highway, Revere 

 

This traffic generation memorandum has been prepared for the proposed commercial redevelopment to be located at 

25-55 American Legion Highway in Revere, MA.  Specifically, this memorandum compares the traffic generation of 

the existing uses on the site to the proposed redeveloped site.    

 

Based on the analysis, the proposed redevelopment use is projected to generate less traffic daily and during the 

weekday evening peak hour.  During the weekday morning peak hour, a net increase of 74 vehicle trips (35 vehicles 

entering and 39 vehicles exiting) can be expected.  This is equivalent to approximately one (1) additional bi-directional 

vehicle every two minutes during the hour. 

 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The existing uses at 25-55 American Legion Highway comprise a 2,800 square foot (sf) branch bank with one (1) drive-

through window, a 1,740 sf car rental office, a 2,145 sf pizza shop, a 2,750 sf of former gym space and a 3,000 sf church.  

Access is currently provided by an in only driveway from Everett Street which serves the bank, a full-movement 

driveway from Everett Street two (2) right turn in/out only driveways to American Legion Highway. 

 

The project will consist of the redevelopment of the site to include a  2,450 sf Starbucks with one (1) drive-through lane, 

a 1,511 pizza shop and a 5,275 Convenient MD urgent care facility.  The Everett Street driveways will be combined to 

a single full movement driveway.  Two (2) right turn in/out only driveways to American Legion Highway will continue 

to serve the site.  Figure 1 shows the study area in relation to the surrounding roadway network. 

  

 

 

 

9.c

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 2 

Figure 1 

Site Location Map 

 

 

SITE TRAFFIC GENERATION 

 

Existing Site Traffic Generation 

 

Site generated traffic was based on trip-generation data published by the ITE Trip Generation manual1.  The existing 

development consists of the 2,800 square foot (sf) branch bank with one (1) drive-through window, a 1,740 sf car rental 

office, a 2,145 sf pizza shop,  2,750 sf of former gym space and a 3,000 sf church.  Trip generation data for Land Use 

Codes (LUC) 710 – General Office, LUC 912 – Drive-In Bank, LUC 560 – Church, LUC 933 – Fast-Food Restaurant 

without Drive-Through Window and LUC 492 – Health/Fitness Club were reviewed as the land uses most similar to 

what currently exists on the site.   

 

 
1Trip Generation, Eleventh Edition; Institute of Transportation Engineers; Washington, DC; 2021. 

SITE 
 

Beach Street 

9.c

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 3 

The trip generation for the existing uses on the site is summarized in Table 1.  The trip generation worksheets are 

included in the Appendix.     

   

 
TABLE 1 

EXISTING TRIP-GENERATION SUMMARY 
  

Existing 

Branch 

Bank 

Tripsa 

 

Existing Car 

Rental 

Office 

Tripsb 

 

 

Existing 

Pizza Shop 

Tripsc 

 

 

Existing 

Church 

Tripsd 

 

 

Existing 

Gym 

Tripse 

 

 

 

Total 

Trips 

 

Weekday Daily 

 

280 

 

34 

 

966 

 

68 

 

110 

 

1,458 

 

Weekday Morning Peak 

Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

16 

  12 

28 

 

 

 

4 

  1 

5 

 

 

 

0 

  0 

0 

 

 

 

1 

  0 

1 

 

 

 

2 

  2 

4 

 

 

 

23 

  15 

38 

 

Weekday Evening Peak 

Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

 

29 

  29 

58 

 

 

 

1 

  5 

6 

 

 

 

36 

  36 

72 

 

 

 

3 

  3 

6 

 

 

 

13 

  10 

23 

 

 

 

82 

  83 

165 

aBased on ITE LUC 912 – Drive-In Bank; 2,800 sf.  
bBased on ITE LUC 710 – General Office; 1,740 sf.  
cBased on ITE LUC 933 – Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window; 2,145 sf.   Closed during weekday morning peak hour. 
dBased on ITE LUC 560 – Church; 3,000 sf.  
eBased on ITE LUC 492 – Health/Fitness Center; 2,750 sf.  

 

 

On a typical weekday, the existing development is expected to generate 1,458 daily vehicle trips.  During the weekday 

morning peak hour, 38 vehicle trips (23 vehicles entering and 15 vehicles exiting) are expected.  During the weekday 

evening peak hour, 165 vehicle trips (82 vehicles entering and 83 vehicles exiting) are expected.    

 

Future Site Traffic Generation 

 

Site generated traffic for the proposed redeveloped site were also based on trip-generation data published by the ITE 

Trip Generation manual2.  The proposed redevelopment consists of the site to include a  2,450 sf Starbucks with one 

(1) drive-through lane, a 1,511 pizza shop and a 5,275 Convenient MD urgent care facility.  The Convenient MD will 

provide full service in-clinic and virtual urgent care services offering convenient access to affordable, high-quality 
 

2Ibid. 

9.c

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 4 

care for episodic acute medical events requiring immediate attention.  The trip generation for the proposed uses are 

summarized in Table 2.  The trip generation worksheets are included in the Appendix.     

 

 

TABLE 2 

FUTURE TRIP-GENERATION SUMMARY 
  

Proposed  

Pizza Shop 

Tripsa 

 

Proposed 

Starbucks 

Tripsb 

 

Proposed 

Convenient MD 

Tripsc 

 

 

Total 

Tripsa 

 

Weekday Daily 

 

680 

 

1,308 

 

132 

 

2,070 

 

Weekday Morning Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

0 

  0 

0 

 

 

107 

  103 

210 

 

 

3 

  3 

6 

 

 

110 

  106 

216 

 

Weekday Evening Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

28 

 28 

56 

 

 

48 

  48 

96 

 

 

4 

  4 

8 

 

 

80 

  80 

160 

aBased on ITE LUC 933 – Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window; 1,511 sf.   Closed during weekday morning peak hour. 
bBased on ITE LUC 937 – Coffee/Donut Shop with Drive-Through Window; 2,450 sf. 
cBased on ITE LUC 650 – Free-Standing Emergency Room; 5,275 sf. 

 

 

On a typical weekday, the proposed development is expected to generate 2,070 daily vehicle trips.  During the weekday 

morning peak hour, 216 vehicle trips (110 vehicles entering and 116 vehicles exiting) are expected.  During the weekday 

evening peak hour, 160 vehicle trips (80 vehicles entering and 80 vehicles exiting) are expected.    

 

Site Traffic Generation Comparison 

 

Summarized in Table 3 is a comparison of the existing traffic generation to the proposed traffic generation.  As shown 

in Table 3, the proposed redevelopment use is projected to generate less traffic than the existing uses on the site. 

 

9.c

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 5 

TABLE 3 

TRIP-GENERATION COMPARISON 
  

 

Existing Site 

Tripsa 

 

Proposed 

Redevelopment 

Tripsb 

 

 

 

Net New 

 

Weekday Daily 

 

1,458 

 

2,070 

 

612 

 

Weekday Morning Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

23 

  15 

38 

 

 

110 

  106 

216 

 

 

87 

  91 

178 

 

Weekday Evening Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

82 

  83 

165 

 

 

80 

  80 

160 

 

 

-2 

  -3 

-5 

aFrom Table 1.  
bFrom Table 2.  

 

 

Not all the trips expected to be generated by the Starbucks coffee shop represent new trips on the study area roadway 

system.  According to the ITE Trip Generation Handbook, a portion of these trips can be considered pass-by trips.  That 

is, they are not considered primary trips of site generated traffic, but consist of vehicles passing by the site on their way 

to another destination.  For various fast food restaurant uses, the ITE Trip Generation Handbook estimates that on 

average, pass-by trips can account for approximately 51 to  percent of the peak hour trip generation.   It is expected that 

coffee and donut shops have a significantly higher pass-by rate; however, currently, no documentation can be found.  

To present a conservative analysis, it was assumed that 50 percent of the daily and peak hour trips for the Starbucks 

coffee shop will be pass-by trips.  These trips are shown in the second column of Table 4.  The total net new Starbucks 

coffee shop trips are shown in the last column of Table 4. 

 

As shown in Table 4 the proposed Starbucks coffee shop is expected to conservatively generate 106 new vehicle 

trips during the weekday morning peak hour (55 vehicles entering and 51 vehicles exiting) and 48 new vehicle 

trips during the weekday evening peak hour (24 vehicles entering and 24 vehicles exiting).   

 

Summarized in Table 5 is a comparison of the existing traffic generation to the proposed traffic generation considering 

the Starbucks Coffee Shop pass-by trips.  As shown in Table 5, the proposed redevelopment use is projected to generate 

less traffic daily and during the weekday evening peak hour.  During the weekday morning peak hour, a net increase of 

74 vehicle trips (35 vehicles entering and 39 vehicles exiting) can be expected.  This is equivalent to approximately one 

(1) additional bi-directional vehicle every two minutes during the hour. 

 

9.c

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 6 

TABLE 4 

STARBUCKS COFFEE SHOP PEAK HOUR PASS-BY TRIP-GENERATION SUMMARY 

  

Proposed  

Tripsa 

 

Pass-By Trips 

 

Net New Trips 

 

Weekday Daily 

 

1,308 

 

654 

 

654 

 

Weekday Morning Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

107 

  103 

210 

 

 

52 

 52 

104 

 

 

55 

 51 

106 

 

Weekday Evening Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

48 

  48 

96 

 

 

24 

 24 

48 

 

 

24 

 24 

48 

aFrom Table 2. 

 

 

TABLE 5 

TRIP-GENERATION COMPARISON WITH PASS_BY TRIPS 
  

 

Existing Site 

Tripsa 

 

Proposed 

Redevelopment 

Tripsb 

 

 

 

Net New 

 

Weekday Daily 

 

1,458 

 

1,416 

 

-42 

 

Weekday Morning Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

23 

  15 

38 

 

 

58 

  54 

112 

 

 

35 

  39 

74 

 

Weekday Evening Peak Hour: 

 Entering 

 Exiting 

 Total 

 

 

 

82 

  83 

165 

 

 

56 

  56 

112 

 

 

-26 

  -27 

-53 

aFrom Table 1.  
bFrom Table 3 and 4, accounting for Starbucks coffee shop pass-by trips..  

 

9.c

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 7 

CONCLUSION  

 

Bayside has examined the potential traffic generation of the existing and proposed uses on the site.   Based on the 

analysis, the proposed redevelopment use is projected to generate less traffic daily and during the weekday evening 

peak hour.  During the weekday morning peak hour, a net increase of 74 vehicle trips (35 vehicles entering and 39 

vehicles exiting) can be expected.  This is equivalent to approximately one (1) additional bi-directional vehicle every 

two minutes during the hour. 

 

  

9.c

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 8 

Appendix 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Trip Generation Worksheets 

  

9.c

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



 

⚫ Page 9 

Trip Generation Worksheets 

 

9.c

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Drive-In Bank, Revre, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 912 - Drive-In Bank

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.: 1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.800 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 100.35 * (X) 19 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 6 ksf

T = 100.35 * ( 2.800 )

T = 280.98

T = 280 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 140 vpd) entering and 50% ( 140 vpd) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 9.950 * (X) 44 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 5 ksf

T = 9.950 * ( 2.800 )

T = 27.86

T = 28 vehicle trips

with 58% ( 16 vph) entering and 42% ( 12 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 21.01 * (X) 114 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 4 ksf

T = 21.01 * ( 2.800 )

T = 58.83

T = 58 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 29 vph) entering and 50% ( 29 vph) exiting.

912-rates

9.c

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Drive-In Bank, Revre, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 912 - Drive-In Bank

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.: 1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.800 ksf

SATURDAY DAILY

T = 86.48 * (X) 5 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 3 ksf

T = 86.48 * ( 2.800 )

T = 242.14

T = 242 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 121 vpd) entering and 50% ( 121 vpd) exiting.

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 26.35 * (X) 41 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 4 ksf

T = 26.35 * ( 2.800 )

T = 73.78

T = 74 vehicle trips

with 51% ( 38 vph) entering and 49% ( 36 vph) exiting.

SUNDAY DAILY

T = 31.96 * (X) 5 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 3 ksf

T = 31.96 * ( 2.800 )

T = 89.49

T = 90 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 45 vpd) entering and 50% ( 45 vpd) exiting.

SUNDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 4.79 * (X) 5 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 3 ksf

T = 4.79 * ( 2.800 )

T = 13.41

T = 13 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 7 vph) entering and 50% ( 6 vph) exiting.

912-rates

9.c

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Car Rental Office, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 710 - General Office Building

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 1.740 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

Ln T = 0.87 Ln (X) + 3.05 R
2
 = 0.78

Ln T = 0.87 Ln ( 1.740  ) + 3.05 59 Studies, Average Rate = 10.84 trips/ksf

Ln T = 3.53 Avg size = 163 ksf

T = 34.19

T = 34 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 17 vph) entering and 50% ( 17 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

Ln T = 0.86 Ln (X) + 1.16 R
2
 = 0.78

Ln T = 0.86 Ln ( 1.740  ) + 1.16 221 Studies, Average Rate = 1.52 trips/ksf

Ln T = 1.64 Avg size = 201 ksf

T = 5.14

T = 5 vehicle trips

with 88% ( 4 vph) entering and 12% ( 1 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

Ln T = 0.83 Ln (X) + 1.29 R
2
 = 0.77

Ln T = 0.83 Ln ( 1.740  ) + 1.29 232 Studies, Average Rate = 1.44 trips/ksf

Ln T = 1.75 Avg size = 199 ksf

T = 5.75

T = 6 vehicle trips

with 17% ( 1 vph) entering and 83% ( 5 vph) exiting.

SATURDAY DAILY

T = 2.21 * (X) No Formula

T = 2.21 * ( 1.740 ) 5 Studies, Average Rate = 2.21 trips/ksf

T = 3.85 Avg size = 94 ksf

T = 4 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 2 vpd) entering and 50% ( 2 vpd) exiting.

1.15 1.15

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 0.53 * (X) No Formula

T = 0.53 * ( 1.740 ) 3 Studies, Average Rate = 0.53 trips/ksf

T = 0.92 Avg size = 82 ksf

T = 1 vehicle trips

with 54% ( 1 vpd) entering and 46% ( 0 vpd) exiting.

710-SF

9.c

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Pizza Shop, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 933 Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.145 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 450.49 * (X) 6 Studies, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 450.49 * 2.145 R2 = NC, AR = 450.49

T = 966.30

T = 966 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 483 vpd) entering and 50% ( 483 vpd) exiting.

225.17 225.17

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 43.18 * (X) 3 Studies, Avg size = 3 ksf

T = 43.18 * 2.145 R2 = NC, AR = 43.18

T = 92.62

T = 93 vehicle trips

with 58% ( 54 vph) entering and 42% ( 39 vph) exiting.

25.17 18.18

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 58.73 * (X) - 10.17 9 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 58.73 * ( 2.145 ) - 10.17 R2 = 0.73, AR = 53.43

T = 115.81

T = 116 vehicle trips

with 53% ( 61 vph) entering and 47% ( 55 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 25.22 * (X) + 18.31 8 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 25.22 * ( 2.145 ) + 18.31 R2 = 0.53, AR = 33.21

T = 72.41

T = 72 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 36 vph) entering and 50% ( 36 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 44.83 * (X) + 16.56 12 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 44.83 * ( 2.145 ) + 16.56 R2 = 0.69, AR = 52.77

T = 112.72

T = 113 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 57 vph) entering and 50% ( 56 vph) exiting.

933- RATES

9.c

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Pizza Shop, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 933 Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.145 ksf

SATURDAY DAILY

T = 696 * (X) Limited Data

T = 696 * 2.145 1 Study, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 1492.92

T = 1,492 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 746 vpd) entering and 50% ( 746 vpd) exiting.

347.79 347.79

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 54.60 * (X) Limited Data

T = 54.60 * 2.145 1 Study, Avg size = 5 ksf

T = 117.12

T = 117 vehicle trips

with 49% ( 57 vph) entering and 51% ( 60 vph) exiting.

26.57 27.97

SUNDAY DAILY

T = 500.00 * (X) Limited Data

T = 500.00 *( 2.145 ) 1 Study, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 1072.50

T = 1,072 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 536 vph) entering and 50% ( 536 vph) exiting.

933- RATES

9.c

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Church, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 560 - Church

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.:1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 3.000 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 5.40 * (X) + 50.83 5 Studies, Avg size = 23 ksf

T = 5.40 * ( 3 ) + 50.83 R2 = 0.69, AR = 7.60

T = 67.03

T = 68 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 34 vpd) entering and 50% ( 34 vpd) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 0.37 * (X) - 1.84 6 Studies, Avg size = 40 ksf

T = 0.37 * ( 3.000 ) - 1.84 R2 = 0.81, AR = 0.32

T = -0.73

T = 1 vehicle trips

with 62% ( 1 vph) entering and 38% ( 0 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 0.68 * (X) 7 Studies, Avg size = 36 ksf

T = 0.68 * ( 3.000 ) R2 = NC, AR = 0.68

T = 2.04

T = 2 vehicle trips

with 55% ( 1 vph) entering and 38% ( 1 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 0.36* (X) + 4.70 11 Studies, Avg size = 35 ksf

T = 0.36 * ( 3.000 ) + 4.70 R2 = 0.64, AR = 0.49

T = 5.78

T = 6 vehicle trips

with 44% ( 3 vph) entering and 56% ( 3 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 0.22* (X) + 21.72 11 Studies, Avg size = 35 ksf

T = 0.22 * ( 3.000 ) + 21.72 R2 = 0.64, AR = 0.49

T = 22.38

T = 22 vehicle trips

with 59% ( 13 vph) entering and 41% ( 9 vph) exiting.

560-ksf

9.c

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Church, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 560 - Church

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.:1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 3.000 ksf

SATURDAY DAILY

T = 4.90 * (X) 4 Studies, Avg size = 26 ksf

T = 4.90 * ( 3 ) R2 = NC, AR = 4.90

T = 14.70

T = 14 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 7 vpd) entering and 50% ( 7 vpd) exiting.

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 2.70 * (X) 5 Studies, Avg size = 25 ksf

T = 2.70 * ( 3.000 ) R2 = NC, AR = 4.90

T = 8.10

T = 8 vehicle trips

with 58% ( 5 vpd) entering and 42% ( 3 vpd) exiting.

SUNDAY DAILY

T = 31.46 * (X) 4 Studies, Avg size = 26 ksf

T = 31.46 * ( 3.000 ) R2 = NC, AR = 31.46

T = 94.38

T = 94 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 47 vpd) entering and 50% ( 47 vpd) exiting.

SUNDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 7.87* (X) + 93.13 16 Studies, Avg size = 38 ksf

T = 7.87 * ( 3.000 ) + 93.13 R2 = 0.56, AR = 10.36

T = 116.74

T = 117 vehicle trips

with 59% ( 69 vph) entering and 41% ( 48 vph) exiting.

560-ksf

9.c

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Gym, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 492 - Health/Fitness Club

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.:1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.750 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

Estimated based on ITE LUC 495 (PM/Daily ratio Avg.)

T = 39.77 * (X)

T = 39.77 * 2.750

T = 109.37

T = 110 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 55 vpd) entering and 50% (55 vpd) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 1.31 * (X) Limited Data, No Formula

T = 1.31 * ( 2.750 ) 6 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 44 ksf

T = 3.60

T = 4 vehicle trips

with 51% ( 2 vph) entering and 49% ( 2 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 1.40 * (X) Limited Data, No Formula

T = 1.40 * ( 2.750 ) 4 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 42 ksf

T = 3.85

T = 4 vehicle trips

with 46% ( 2 vph) entering and 54% ( 2 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

Ln T = 0.67 Ln (X) + 2.44 R
2
 = 0.67

Ln T = 0.67 Ln ( 2.750  ) + 2.44 8 Studies, Average Rate = 3.45 trips/ksf

Ln T = 3.12 Avg size = 37 ksf

T = 22.60

T = 23 vehicle trips

with 57% ( 13 vph) entering and 43% ( 10 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 3.92 * (X) Limited Data, No Formula

T = 3.92 * ( 2.750 ) 3 Studies, Avg sf of GFA = 40 ksf

T = 10.78

T = 11 vehicle trips

with 52% ( 6 vph) entering and 48%  ( 5 vph) exiting.

492-ksf

9.c

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Existing Gym, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 492 - Health/Fitness Club

Source :  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE)  Trip Generation, 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs.:1,000 Square Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.750 ksf

SATURDAY DAILY

No Data

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 3.19 * (X) No Formula

T = 3.19 * 0.000 3 Studies, Average Rate = 3.19 trips/ksf

T = 8.77 Avg size = 16 ksf

T = 9 vehicle trips

with 49% ( 4 vpd) entering and 51% ( 5 vpd) exiting.

492-ksf

9.c

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Proposed  Pizza Shop, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 933 Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 1.511

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 450.49 * (X) 6 Studies, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 450.49 * 1.511 R2 = NC, AR = 450.49

T = 680.69

T = 680 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 340 vpd) entering and 50% ( 340 vpd) exiting.

225.02 225.02

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 43.18 * (X) 3 Studies, Avg size = 3 ksf

T = 43.18 * 1.511 R2 = NC, AR = 43.18

T = 65.24

T = 65 vehicle trips

with 58% ( 38 vph) entering and 42% ( 27 vph) exiting.

25.15 17.87

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 58.73 * (X) - 10.17 9 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 58.73 * ( 1.511 ) - 10.17 R2 = 0.73, AR = 53.43

T = 78.57

T = 79 vehicle trips

with 53% ( 42 vph) entering and 47% ( 37 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 25.22 * (X) + 18.31 8 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 25.22 * ( 1.511 ) + 18.31 R2 = 0.53, AR = 33.21

T = 56.42

T = 56 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 28 vph) entering and 50% ( 28 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 44.83 * (X) + 16.56 12 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 44.83 * ( 1.511 ) + 16.56 R2 = 0.69, AR = 52.77

T = 84.30

T = 84 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 42 vph) entering and 50% ( 42 vph) exiting.

933- RATES p

9.c

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Proposed  Pizza Shop, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 933 Fast-Food Restaurant without Drive-Through Window

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 1.511

SATURDAY DAILY

T = 696 * (X) Limited Data

T = 696 * 1.511 1 Study, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 1051.66

T = 1,052 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 526 vpd) entering and 50% ( 526 vpd) exiting.

348.11 348.11

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 54.60 * (X) Limited Data

T = 54.60 * 1.511 1 Study, Avg size = 5 ksf

T = 82.50

T = 83 vehicle trips

with 49% ( 41 vph) entering and 51% ( 42 vph) exiting.

27.13 27.80

SUNDAY DAILY

T = 500.00 * (X) Limited Data

T = 500.00 *( 1.511 ) 1 Study, Avg size = 1 ksf

T = 755.50

T = 756 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 378 vph) entering and 50% ( 378 vph) exiting.

933- RATES p

9.c

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Proposed Coffee/Donut Shop with Drive-Through Window, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 937 - Coffee/Donut Shop with Drive-Through Window

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 2.450 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 533.57 * (X) 6 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 533.57 * 2.450 R2 = NC, AR = 533.57

T = 1307.25

T = 1,308 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 654 vpd) entering and 50% ( 654 vpd) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 85.88 * (X) 78 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 85.88 * 2.450 R2 = NC, AR = 85.88

T = 210.41

T = 210 vehicle trips

with 51% ( 107 vph) entering and 49% ( 103 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 38.99 * (X) 36 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 38.99 * 2.450 R2 = NC, AR = 38.99

T = 95.53

T = 96 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 48 vph) entering and 50% ( 48 vph) exiting.

SATURDAY DAILY NO DATA

Estimated based on ITE LUC 934 (AM/Daily + PM/Daily ratio Avg.)

T = 725.90 * (X)

T = 725.90 * 2.450

T = 1778.46

T = 1,778 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 889 vpd) entering and 50% ( 889 vpd) exiting.

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR

T = 87.91 * (X) 9 Studies, Avg size = 2 ksf

T = 87.91 * 2.450 R2 = NC, AR = 87.91

T = 215.38

T = 215 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 107 vph) entering and 50% ( 108 vph) exiting.

937-SF

9.c

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



Proposed Convenient MD, Revere, MA

Land Use Code (LUC) 650 - Free-Standing Emergency Room

Source:  Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) - 11th Edition

Average Vehicle Trips Ends vs: 1,000 Sq. Feet Gross Floor Area

Independent Variable (X): 5.275 ksf

AVERAGE WEEKDAY DAILY

T = 24.94 * (X) 4 Studies, Avg size = 11 ksf

T = 24.94 * 5.275 R2 = NC, AR = 24.94

T = 131.56

T = 132 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 66 vpd) entering and 50% ( 66 vpd) exiting.

WEEKDAY MORNING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 1.12 * (X) 4 Studies, Avg size = 11 ksf

T = 1.12 * 5.275 R2 = NC, AR = 1.12

T = 5.91

T = 6 vehicle trips

with 50% ( 3 vph) entering and 50% ( 3 vph) exiting.

WEEKDAY EVENING PEAK HOUR OF ADJACENT STREET TRAFFIC

T = 1.52 * (X) 4 Studies, Avg size = 11 ksf

T = 1.52 * 5.275 R2 = NC, AR = 1.52

T = 8.02

T = 8 vehicle trips

with 46% ( 4 vph) entering and 50% ( 4 vph) exiting.

SATURDAY DAILY NO DATA

SATURDAY MIDDAY PEAK HOUR OF GENERATOR NO DATA

650-sf

9.c

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 T

ri
p

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 M
em

o
  (

22
-1

27
 :

 S
p

ec
ia

l P
er

m
it

, 2
5-

55
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 H
ig

h
w

ay
)



10.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



10.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

H
.3

04
S

q
u

ir
eR

o
ad

S
p

ec
ia

lP
er

m
it

04
25

20
22

  (
22

-1
28

 :
 S

p
ec

ia
l P

er
m

it
 -

 3
04

 S
q

u
ir

e 
R

o
ad

)



11.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
 R

es
ci

ss
io

n
s 

 (
22

-1
37

 :
 B

O
N

D
 R

E
S

C
IS

S
IO

N
S

-P
R

IO
R

 Y
E

A
R

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

E
V

O
L

V
IN

G
 F

U
N

D
 (

S
R

F
) 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
S

)



11.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
n

d
 R

es
ci

ss
io

n
s 

 (
22

-1
37

 :
 B

O
N

D
 R

E
S

C
IS

S
IO

N
S

-P
R

IO
R

 Y
E

A
R

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

E
V

O
L

V
IN

G
 F

U
N

D
 (

S
R

F
) 

A
U

T
H

O
R

IZ
A

T
IO

N
S

)



1

Ashley Melnik

From: Albert Fiore <afiore686868@icloud.com>
Sent: Friday, May 6, 2022 11:15 AM
To: Ashley Melnik
Subject: Communication re: Resignation

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Madam Clerk, 
 
Communication from Councillor Fiore: Mr. President and members of the Council: 
Due to my ongoing medical issues, I can not effectively represent the residents of Ward 5. Therefore, effective today, I 
am resigning from the office of Ward 5 City Councillor. I would like to thank the residents of Ward 5 for the opportunity 
to serve and wish everyone well. 
Respectfully, 
Al Fiore 
 
 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 

20.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

llo
rF

io
re

R
es

ig
n

at
io

n
05

09
20

22
  (

22
-1

46
 :

 R
es

ig
n

at
io

n
 o

f 
W

ar
d

 F
iv

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

llo
r 

A
l F

io
re

)


	Agenda Packet
	5:00PM  Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee Meeting
	5:30PM  Zoning Sub-Committee Meeting
	Salute to the Flag
	1. Roll Call
	2. Minutes of Apr 25, 2022 6:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Apr 25, 2022 6:00 PM


	Public Hearings
	3. 22-136 : Loan Order - Lincoln School Door & Window Replacement
	a. LoanOrder.LincolnSchoolWindowDoorReplacementBond04252022


	Unfinished Business
	4. 22-062 : CZ-22-01, Rental Car Facilities in HB Zoning District
	a. CZ2201ZoningAmendmentRentalCarFacilitiesHBDistrict
	b. CZ2201RentalCarFacilitiesHBDistrictPlanningBoardRecommendation

	5. 22-130 : National Grid - Rice Avenue Pump Station
	a. PH.NationalGridRiceAvenue04252022


	Economic Development Sub-Committee Report
	6. 22-026 : Parking Benefits District
	a. Parking Benefits


	Legislative Affairs Sub-Committee Report
	7. 22-120 : Biosafety Level 2 Zoning and Regulations
	8. 22-121 : Special Legislation Prohibiting Testing on Animals for Cosmetic Purposes

	Zoning Sub-Committee Report
	9. 22-127 : Special Permit, 25-55 American Legion Highway
	a. PH.25-55AmericanLegionHighwaySpecialPermit04252022
	b. AmericanLegionHighwaySpecialPermitPresentation
	c. American Legion Highway Trip Generation Memo

	10. 22-128 : Special Permit - 304 Squire Road
	a. PH.304SquireRoadSpecialPermit04252022


	Communications
	11. 22-137 : BOND RESCISSIONS-PRIOR YEAR STATE REVOLVING FUND (SRF) AUTHORIZATIONS
	a. Bond Rescissions


	Motions
	12. 22-138 : Police Department - Speeding Enforcement Cushman Avenue
	13. 22-139 : Oxford Park Improvements
	14. 22-140 : Capital Waste Behavior and Business Practice
	15. 22-141 : Speeding on Proctor Avenue
	16. 22-142 : Suffolk Downs Life Sciences Building - HYM Investment Group
	17. 22-143 : Decorative Street Lamps for Entire Length of Broadway
	18. 22-144 : Accounting of ARPA Funds
	19. 22-145 : Chai Hossaini, Human Rights Commission

	Late Communications
	20. 22-146 : Resignation of Ward Five Councillor Al Fiore
	a. CouncillorFioreResignation05092022



	Appendix
	2 · Minutes of Apr 25, 2022 6:00 PM
	3.a · LoanOrder.LincolnSchoolWindowDoorReplacementBond04252022
	4.a · CZ2201ZoningAmendmentRentalCarFacilitiesHBDistrict
	4.b · CZ2201RentalCarFacilitiesHBDistrictPlanningBoardRecommendation
	5.a · PH.NationalGridRiceAvenue04252022
	6.a · Parking Benefits
	9.a · PH.25-55AmericanLegionHighwaySpecialPermit04252022
	9.b · AmericanLegionHighwaySpecialPermitPresentation
	9.c · American Legion Highway Trip Generation Memo
	10.a · PH.304SquireRoadSpecialPermit04252022
	11.a · Bond Rescissions
	20.a · CouncillorFioreResignation05092022


